

MEETINGS AND NOTICES

Meetings of the Governing Board are conducted for the purpose of accomplishing district business. In accordance with state open meeting laws (Brown Act), the Board shall hold its meetings in public and shall conduct closed sessions during such meetings only as authorized by law.

(cf. 9321 - Closed Session Purposes and Agendas)

(cf. 9321.1 - Closed Session Actions and Reports)

(cf. 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materials)

(cf. 9323 - Meeting Conduct)

A Board meeting exists whenever a majority of Board members gather at the same time and place to hear, discuss, or deliberate upon any item within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board or district. (Government Code 54952.2)

A majority of the Board shall not, outside of an authorized meeting, use a series of communications of any kind, directly or through intermediaries, to discuss, deliberate, or take action on any item that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board. However, an employee or district official may engage in separate conversations with Board members in order to answer questions or provide information regarding an item within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board, as long as that employee or district official does not communicate the comments or position of any Board members to other Board members. (Government Code 54952.2)

(cf. 9012 - Board Member Electronic Communications)

In order to help ensure the participation of individuals with disabilities at Board meetings, the Superintendent or designee shall provide appropriate disability-related accommodations or modifications upon request in accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act. (Government Code 54953.2, 54954.1)

Regular Meetings

The Board shall hold one (1) regular meeting each month. Regular meetings shall be held at 4:30 p.m. according to the Board adopted meeting calendar, at the Point Arena High School Library.

At least 72 hours prior to a regular meeting, the agenda shall be posted at one or more locations freely accessible to members of the public and on the district's Internet web site. (Government Code 54954.2)

(cf. 1113 - District and School Web Sites)

MEETINGS AND NOTICES

Whenever agenda materials relating to an open session of a regular meeting are distributed to the Board less than 72 hours before the meeting, the Superintendent or designee shall make the materials available for public inspection at a public office or location designated for that purpose. (Government Code 54957.5)

(cf. 1340 - Access to District Records)

Special Meetings

Special meetings of the Board may be called at any time by the presiding officer or a majority of the Board members. However, a special meeting shall not be called regarding the salary, salary schedule, or other compensation of the Superintendent, assistant superintendent, or other management employee as described in Government Code 3511.1. (Government Code 54956)

(cf. 2121 - Superintendent's Contract)

Written notice of special meetings shall be delivered personally or by any other means to all Board members and the local media who have requested such notice in writing. The notice also shall be posted on the district's Internet web site. The notice shall be received at least 24 hours before the time of the meeting. The notice shall also be posted at least 24 hours before the meeting in a location freely accessible to the public. The notice shall specify the time and place of the meeting and the business to be transacted or discussed. No other business shall be considered at this meeting. (Education Code 35144; Government Code 54956)

Any Board member may waive the 24-hour written notice requirement prior to the time of the meeting by filing a written waiver of notice with the clerk or secretary of the Board or by being present at the meeting at the time it convenes. (Government Code 54956)

Every notice of a special meeting shall provide an opportunity for members of the public to directly address the Board concerning any item that has been described in the meeting notice, before or during the item's consideration. (Government Code 54954.3)

Emergency Meetings

In the case of an emergency situation for which prompt action is necessary due to the disruption or threatened disruption of public facilities, the Board may hold an emergency meeting without complying with the 24-hour notice and/or 24-hour posting requirement for special meetings pursuant to Government Code 54956. The Board shall comply with all other requirements for special meetings during an emergency meeting. (Government Code 54956.5)

An emergency situation means either of the following: (Government Code 54956.5)

1. An emergency, which shall be defined as a work stoppage, crippling activity, or other

MEETINGS AND NOTICES

activity that severely impairs public health and/or safety as determined by a majority of the members of the Board

(cf. 4141.6/4241.6 - Concerted Action/Work Stoppage)

2. A dire emergency, which shall be defined as a crippling disaster, mass destruction, terrorist activity, or threatened terrorist act that poses peril so immediate and significant that requiring the Board to provide one-hour notice before holding an emergency meeting may endanger the public health and/or safety as determined by a majority of the members of the Board

(cf. 3516 - Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness Plan)

Except in the case of a dire emergency, the Board president or designee shall give notice of the emergency meeting by telephone at least one hour before the meeting to the local media that have requested notice of special meetings. All telephone numbers provided by the media in the most recent request for notification must be exhausted. If telephone services are not functioning, the notice requirement of one hour is waived and, as soon after the meeting as possible, the Board shall notify those media representatives of the meeting and shall describe the purpose of the meeting and any action taken by the Board. In the case of a dire emergency, the Board president or designee shall give such notice at or near the time he/she notifies the other members of the Board about the meeting. (Government Code 54956.5)

The minutes of the meeting, a list of persons the Board president or designee notified or attempted to notify, a copy of the roll call vote, and any actions taken at the meeting shall be posted for at least 10 days in a public place as soon after the meeting as possible. (Government Code 54956.5)

Adjourned/Continued Meetings

A majority vote by the Board may adjourn/continue any regular or special meeting to a later time and place that shall be specified in the order of adjournment. Less than a quorum of the Board may adjourn such a meeting. If no Board members are present, the secretary or the clerk may declare the meeting adjourned to a later time and shall give notice in the same manner required for special meetings. (Government Code 54955)

Within 24 hours after the time of adjournment, a copy of the order or notice of adjournment/continuance shall be conspicuously posted on or near the door of the place where the meeting was held. (Government Code 54955)

Other Gatherings

Attendance by a majority of Board members at any of the following events is not subject to the

MEETINGS AND NOTICES

Brown Act provided that a majority of the Board members do not discuss specific district business among themselves other than as part of the scheduled program: (Government Code 54952.2)

1. A conference or similar public gathering open to the public that involves a discussion of issues of general interest to the public or to school board members
2. An open, publicized meeting organized by a person or organization other than the district to address a topic of local community concern
3. An open and noticed meeting of another body of the district
4. An open and noticed meeting of a legislative body of another local agency
5. A purely social or ceremonial occasion
6. An open and noticed meeting of a standing committee of the Board, provided that the Board members who are not members of the standing committee attend only as observers

(cf. 9130 - Board Committees)

Individual contacts or conversations between a Board member and any other person are not subject to the Brown Act. (Government Code 54952.2)

Location of Meetings

Meetings shall not be held in a facility that prohibits the admittance of any person on the basis of ancestry or any characteristic listed in Government Code 11135, including, but not limited to, religion, sex, or sexual orientation. In addition, meetings shall not be held in a facility which is inaccessible to individuals with disabilities or where members of the public must make a payment or purchase in order to be admitted. (Government Code 54961)

(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities)

Meetings shall be held within district boundaries, except to do any of the following:
(Government Code 54954)

1. Comply with state or federal law or court order or attend a judicial or administrative proceeding to which the district is a party
2. Inspect real or personal property which cannot conveniently be brought into the district, provided that the topic of the meeting is limited to items directly related to the property

MEETINGS AND NOTICES

3. Participate in meetings or discussions of multiagency significance, provided these meetings are held within one of the other agencies' boundaries, with all participating agencies giving the notice required by law
4. Meet in the closest meeting facility if the district has no meeting facility within its boundaries or if its principal office is located outside the district
5. Meet with elected or appointed state or federal officials when a local meeting would be impractical, solely to discuss legislative or regulatory issues affecting the district over which the state or federal officials have jurisdiction
6. Meet in or near a facility owned by the district but located outside the district, provided the meeting agenda is limited to items directly related to that facility
7. Visit the office of the district's legal counsel for a closed session on pending litigation, when doing so would reduce legal fees or costs
8. Attend conferences on nonadversarial collective bargaining techniques
9. Interview residents of another district regarding the Board's potential employment of an applicant for Superintendent of the district
10. Interview a potential employee from another district

Meetings exempted from the boundary requirements, as specified in items #1-10 above, shall still be subject to the notice and open meeting requirements for regular and special meetings when a quorum of the Board attends the meeting.

If a fire, flood, earthquake, or other emergency renders the regular meeting place unsafe, meetings shall be held for the duration of the emergency at a place designated by the Board president or designee, who shall so inform all news media who have requested notice of special meetings by the most rapid available means of communication. (Government Code 54954)

Teleconferencing

A teleconference is a meeting of the Board in which Board members are in different locations, connected by electronic means through audio and/or video. (Government Code 54953)

The Board may use teleconferences for all purposes in connection with any meeting within the Board's subject matter jurisdiction. All votes taken during a teleconference meeting shall be by roll call. (Government Code 54953)

MEETINGS AND NOTICES

During the teleconference, at least a quorum of the members of the Board shall participate from locations within district boundaries. (Government Code 54953)

Agendas shall be posted at all teleconference locations and shall list all teleconference locations whenever they are posted elsewhere. Additional teleconference locations may be provided to the public. (Government Code 54953)

All teleconference locations shall be accessible to the public. All teleconferenced meetings shall be conducted in a manner that protects the statutory and constitutional rights of the parties or the public appearing before the Board, including the right of the public to address the Board directly at each teleconference location. (Government Code 54953)

All Board policies, administrative regulations, and bylaws shall apply equally to meetings that are teleconferenced. The Superintendent or designee shall facilitate public participation in the meeting at each teleconference location.

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

- 35140 Time and place of meetings
- 35143 Annual organizational meeting, date, and notice
- 35144 Special meeting
- 35145 Public meetings
- 35145.5 Agenda; public participation; regulations
- 35146 Closed sessions
- 35147 Open meeting law exceptions and applications

GOVERNMENT CODE

- 3511.1 Local agency executives
- 11135 State programs and activities, discrimination
- 54950-54963 The Ralph M. Brown Act, especially:
 - 54953 Meetings to be open and public; attendance
 - 54954 Time and place of regular meetings
 - 54954.2 Agenda posting requirements, board actions
 - 54956 Special meetings; call; notice
 - 54956.5 Emergency meetings

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42

- 12101-12213 Americans with Disabilities Act

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28

- 35.160 Effective communications
- 36.303 Auxiliary aids and services

COURT DECISIONS

MEETINGS AND NOTICES

Wolfe v. City of Fremont, (2006) 144 Cal.App. 544

ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS

88 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 218 (2005)

84 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 181 (2001)

84 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 30 (2001)

79 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 69 (1996)

78 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 327 (1995)

Management Resources:

CSBA PUBLICATIONS

The Brown Act: School Boards and Open Meeting Laws, rev. 2009

INSTITUTE FOR LOCAL GOVERNMENT PUBLICATIONS

The ABCs of Open Government Laws

LEAGUE OF CALIFORNIA CITIES PUBLICATIONS

Open and Public IV: A Guide to the Ralph M. Brown Act, 2nd Ed., 2010

WEB SITES

CSBA: <http://www.csba.org>

CSBA, Agenda Online:

<http://www.csba.org/Services/Services/GovernanceTechnology/AgendaOnline.aspx>

California Attorney General's Office: <http://www.ag.ca.gov>

Institute for Local Government: <http://www.ca-ilg.org>

League of California Cities: <http://www.cacities.org>

(3/08 11/08) 11/11

**Board Bylaw
Adopted:**

**ARENA UNION ELEMENTARY/POINT ARENA JT. UHSD
May 13, 2015
Point Arena, California**

HIGH SCHOOL GRADUATION REQUIREMENTS

The Governing Board desires to prepare all students to obtain a high school diploma to enable them to take advantage of opportunities for postsecondary education and employment.

(cf. 5127 - Graduation Ceremonies and Activities)

(cf. 5147 - Dropout Prevention)

(cf. 5149 - At-Risk Students)

(cf. 6143 - Courses of Study)

(cf. 6146.3 - Reciprocity of Academic Credit)

Course Requirements

To obtain a high school diploma, students shall complete at least the following courses in grades 9-12, with each course being one year unless otherwise specified:

1. Four courses in English (40 credits) (Education Code 51225.3) and ***passing scores on required writing benchmarks.***

(cf. 6142.91 - Reading/Language Arts Instruction)

2. Three courses (30 credits) in mathematics (Education Code 51225.3).

At least one mathematics course, or a combination of the three mathematics courses required for completion in grades 9-12 shall meet or exceed state academic content standards for Algebra I and Geometry. (Education Code 51224.5)

Completion, prior to grade 9, of algebra coursework that meets or exceeds state academic content standards shall satisfy the algebra coursework requirement, but shall not exempt a student from the requirement to complete three mathematics courses in grades 9-12 (Education Code 51224.5)

(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards)

(cf. 6142.92 - Mathematics Instruction)

3. Two courses in science, including biological (10 credits) and physical sciences (10 credits). (Education Code 51225.3)

(cf. 6142.93 - Science Instruction)

4. Four courses in social studies, including United States history (10 credits) and; world history (10 credits), a one-semester course in American government and civics (5 credits); and a one-semester course in economics (5 credits). (Education Code 51225.3)

(cf. 6142.3 - Civic Education)

(cf. 6142.93 - History-Social Science Instruction)

Adopt with added language.

HIGH SCHOOL GRADUATION REQUIREMENTS

5. One course in foreign language, including American Sign Language, or career technical education (10 credits). (Education Code 51225.3)

To be counted towards meeting graduation requirements, a course in career technical education shall be aligned to the career technical model curriculum standards and framework adopted by the State Board of Education.

(cf. 6142.2 - World/Foreign Language Instruction)
(cf. 6142.6 - Visual and Performing Arts Education)
(cf. 6178 - Career Technical Education)
(cf. 6178.2 - Regional Occupational Center/Program)

6. Two courses (20 credits) in physical education, unless the student has been otherwise exempted pursuant to other sections of the Education Code. (Education Code 51225.3)

(cf. 6142.7 - Physical Education and Activity)

7. One course in visual or performing arts (10 credits).

8. Completion of elective credits as indicated in Exhibit E 6146.1.

9. The State health standards requirement will be met in the Freshman Seminar course.

Because the prescribed course of study may not accommodate the needs of some students, the Board shall provide alternative means for the completion of prescribed courses in accordance with law.

(cf. 6146.11 - Alternative Credits Toward Graduation)
(cf. 6146.2 - Certificate of Proficiency/High School Equivalency)

The Superintendent or designee shall exempt or waive specific course requirements for foster youth or children of military families in accordance with Education Code 51225.3 and 49701.

(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth)
(cf. 6173.2 - Education for Children of Military Families)

10. Attendance.

Students must have cumulative 94% attendance record while enrolled at Point Arena High School and South Coast Continuation High School in order to graduate from Point Arena High School District.

2016-2017 Senior Class - 94% cumulative attendance senior year.

2016-2017 Junior Class - 94% cumulative attendance in Junior and Senior year.

2016-2017 Sophomore Class - 94% cumulative attendance in Sophomore, Junior and Senior year.

2016-2017 Freshman Class and all others - 94% cumulative attendance while enrolled at Point

Adopt with added language.

HIGH SCHOOL GRADUATION REQUIREMENTS

Arena High School.

High School Exit Examination

~~As a condition of high school graduation, each student completing grade 12 shall have successfully passed the state exit examination in language arts and mathematics unless he/she receives a waiver or exemption. (Education Code 60851, 60859)~~

~~(cf. 6146.4 - Differential Graduation and Competency Standards for Students with Disabilities)~~

~~(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program)~~

~~(cf. 6162.52 - High School Exit Examination)~~

Supplemental instruction shall be offered to any student in grade 7-12 who does not demonstrate "sufficient progress," as defined in BP 6179 - Supplemental Instruction, toward passing the exit exam. (Education Code 37252, 60851)

(cf. 5148.2 - Before/After School Programs)

(cf. 6176 - Weekend/Saturday Classes)

(cf. 6177 - Summer School)

(cf. 6179 - Supplemental Instruction)

Students who have not passed one or both parts of the exit exam by the end of grade 12 shall have the opportunity to receive intensive instruction and services for up to two consecutive academic years after completion of grade 12 or until they have passed both parts of the exam, whichever comes first. (Education Code 37254)

(cf. 1312.4 - Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures)

(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services)

The Superintendent or designee shall regularly report to the Board regarding the number of students who have fulfilled all local and state graduation requirements except for the passage of the exit exam and the resources that have been offered to such students.

Certificates of Completion

Students who have passed all the district's course requirements by the end of their senior year but are unable to pass the high school exit exam shall receive a certificate of completion.

The Superintendent or designee shall regularly report to the Board regarding the number of students receiving a certificate of completion and the resources that have been offered to such students.

Retroactive Diplomas

The district may retroactively grant a high school diploma to a former student who was interned by order of the federal government during World War II or who is an honorably discharged

Adopt with added language.

HIGH SCHOOL GRADUATION REQUIREMENTS

veteran of World War II, the Korean War, or the Vietnam War, provided that he/she was enrolled in a district school immediately preceding the internment or military service and he/she did not receive a diploma because his/her education was interrupted due to the internment or military service. (Education Code 51430)

The district also may retroactively grant a diploma to a deceased former student who satisfies the above conditions. The diploma shall be received by the deceased student's next of kin. (Education Code 51430)

In addition, the district may grant a diploma to a veteran who entered the military service of the United States while he/she was a district student in grade 12 and who had completed the first half of the work required for grade 12. (Education Code 51440)

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

- 35186 Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures
- 37252 Supplemental instructional programs
- 37254 Supplemental instruction based on failure to pass exit exam by end of grade 12
- 37254.1 Required student participation in supplemental instruction
- 47612 Enrollment in charter school
- 48200 Compulsory attendance
- 48412 Certificate of proficiency
- 48430 Continuation education schools and classes
- 48645.5 Acceptance of coursework
- 48980 Required notification at beginning of term
- 49701 Interstate Compact on Educational Opportunity for Military Children
- 51224 Skills and knowledge required for adult life
- 51224.5 Algebra instruction
- 51225.3 Requirements for graduation
- 51225.5 Honorary diplomas; foreign exchange students
- 51228 Graduation requirements
- 51240-51246 Exemptions from requirements
- 51250-51251 Assistance to military dependents
- 51410-51412 Diplomas
- 51420-51427 High school equivalency certificates
- 51450-51455 Golden State Seal Merit Diploma
- 51745 Independent study restrictions
- 52378 Supplemental school counseling program
- 56390-56392 Recognition for educational achievement, special education
- 60850-60859 High school exit examination
- 66204 Certification of high school courses as meeting university admissions criteria

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5

- 1600-1651 Graduation of students from grade 12 and credit toward graduation

COURT DECISIONS

- O'Connell v. Superior Court (Valenzuela), (2006) 141 Cal.App.4th 1452

Management Resources:

WEB SITES

Adopt with added language.

HIGH SCHOOL GRADUATION REQUIREMENTS

CSBA: <http://www.csba.org>

California Department of Education, High School: <http://www.cde.ca.gov/ci/gs/hs>

University of California, List of Approved a-g Courses:

<http://www.universityofcalifornia.edu/admissions/freshman/requirements>

(11/07 11/09) 11/11

**Policy:
Adopted**

**ARENA UNION ELEMENTARY/POINT ARENA JT. UHSD
~~March 11, 2015~~ Point Arena, California**

Adopt with added language.

**POINT ARENA SCHOOL JULY 2015 POLICIES
RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE POLICY COMMITTEE**

District Name: POINT ARENA SCHOOLS
Contact Name: Mr. Brent Cushenbery, Superintendent

First Reading: 01/13/2016
Adoption: 02/10/2016

| POLICY | TITLE | RECOMMENDATIONS |
|-------------------------------|--|---|
| BP/AR 0420 | School Plans/Site Council | Approve. Aligns with LCAP |
| BP/AR 1312.3 | Uniform Complaint Procedures | Approve. Adds LCAP Language. |
| BP/E 4040 | Employee Use of Technology | Approve. Adds responsibility to report and adds "Acceptable Use Agreement". |
| BP 4131 4231 | Staff Development | Approve. Aligns with NEW LAW – PD part of a coherent plan. |
| AR 4161.8 4261.8 4361.8 | Family Care and Medical Leave | Approve. NEW LAW – same sex partner language. |
| AR 5121 | Grades/Evaluation of Student Achievement | Approve. NEW LAW – submit GPA of students in grades 12 to al Grant program. |
| BP 5131.2 | Bullying | Neutral. Uniform Complaint Procedures is formal-wonder how this reflects to bullying? |
| BP/AR 5148 | Child Care and Development | N/A. We do not run a Child Care Program. |
| BP/AR 5148.2 | Before/After School Programs | Approve. NEW LAW SB 1221. |
| BP/AR 5148.3 | Preschool/Early Childhood Education | Approve. NEW LAW SB 858. |
| BP/E 6163.4 | Student Use of Technology | Approve. Updates circumstances for lawful search of student devices. Adds acceptable Use Agreement. |
| BB 9100 | Organization | Neutral. Clarifies timelines for Board Organizational meeting. |

**JULY 2015 UPDATES
GUIDESHEETS
POLICY COMMITTEE FIRST READ: OCTOBER 27, 2015
POLICY COMMITTEE SECOND READ: DECEMBER 15, 2015
BOARD MEMBERS FIRST READ: JANUARY 13, 2016
BOARD ADOPTION: FEBRUARY 10, 2016**

BP/AR 0420

School Plans/Site Council

(BP/AR revised) Policy and regulation updated to reflect requirements to align the district's local control and accountability plan with the strategies in each school's single plan for student achievement (SPSA) and the repeal of certain categorical programs that had been included in the state's consolidated application. Policy clarifies the continuing need for schools participating in specified state or federal categorical programs to develop the SPSA.

BP/AR 1312.3

Uniform Complaint Procedures

(BP/AR revised) Policy and regulation updated to reflect California Department of Education (CDE) compliance requirements for 2015-16 school year. Regulation also clarifies timeline for filing complaints regarding student fees and reflects NEW OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS GUIDANCE recommending that districts use web sites and social media to post nondiscrimination notices, policies, and procedures and contact information for compliance officer(s).

BP/E 4040

Employee Use of Technology

(BP revised; AR deleted; E added) Policy updated to delete outdated section on use of cell phone or mobile communications device, clarify that use of a password does not give an employee a reasonable expectation of privacy, and add material formerly in AR re: accessing/posting harmful matter and employees' responsibility to report security problems or misuse of district technology. Regulation deleted and replaced by new Exhibit presenting a sample Acceptable Use Agreement.

BP 4131, 4231

Staff Development

(BP revised) Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 1060, 2014) which requires any district that offers a program of professional growth for certificated employees to evaluate professional learning opportunities offered by the district based on specified criteria.

AR 4161.8
4261.8
4361.8

Family Care and Medical Leave

(AR revised) Regulation updated to reflect NEW TITLE 2 REGULATIONS (Register 2015, No. 17) which retitle, renumber, and amend certain provisions implementing the California Family Rights Act, including the definition of "serious health condition," medical certification of the need for the leave, and refusal to reinstate an employee if the leave was fraudulently obtained by the employee. Renumbered Title 2 regulations related to pregnancy disability leave and other legal cites updated throughout the AR. Regulation also reflects NEW LAW (SB 1306, 2014) which revises the definition of marriage and thus affects the definition of "spouse."

AR 5121

Grades/Evaluation of Student Achievement

(AR revised) Regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 2160, 2014) which requires districts to submit the grade point average (GPA) of students in grade 12 to the Cal Grant program. Revised regulation condenses material prohibiting lowering of a foster youth's grades for absences due to a change in placement or specified court-related activities, also addressed in BP 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth. Regulation also replaces two options regarding grading for repeated classes with optional language that the highest grade received will be used in calculating the GPA.

BP 5131.2

Bullying

(BP revised) Policy updated to clarify the appropriate use of the uniform complaint procedures (UCP) in cases of nondiscriminatory bullying. As revised, the policy provides that the UCP be used to investigate all instances of bullying, but that conduct determined to be nondiscriminatory bullying then be resolved in accordance with the district's student discipline policies and procedures.

BP/AR 5148

Child Care and Development

(BP/AR revised) Policy updated to expand optional priorities for child care services to include children of district students, expand examples of methods to provide facilities for child care services, and add new section on "Complaints." Regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 1944, 2014) which deletes the requirement for parents/guardians of a child age 11-12 to certify in writing that they need child care services because a before-school or after-school program is unavailable. Regulation also revised to

clarify eligibility for subsidized services, reflect the new fee schedule that went into effect July 1, 2014, provide for reassessment of fees when a family is recertified or experiences a change in status, and reflect renumbering of legal cites.

BP/AR 5148.2

Before/After School Programs

(BP/AR revised) Policy and regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 1221, 2014) which requires before/after school programs to submit program attendance reports on a semi-annual basis and to use a program quality improvement process that is based on standards developed by the CDE. Policy also adds material on qualifications of staff and volunteers, the preferred placement of students ages 11-12 in a before/after school program rather than subsidized child care services, and timelines for review and maintenance of the program plan. Regulation also revised to clarify applicable grade levels for the 21st Century Community Learning Center program, reflect funding priorities used by the CDE, add material on summer programs, and reflect law authorizing a full meal to be served in after-school programs.

BP/AR 5148.3

Preschool/Early Childhood Education

(BP/AR revised) Policy and regulation updated to reflect the mandate for districts offering California State Preschool Program (CSPP) programs to develop written admissions policies and procedures with specified components. Policy also updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 858, 2014) which (1) authorizes districts to use a portion of a reserve fund for purposes of staff development for CSPP instructional staff and (2) establishes the early learning quality rating and improvement system (QRIS) block grant to support continuous local improvement efforts that increase the number of low-income children in high-quality preschool programs. Regulation updated to reflect provisions of SB 858 that grant second priority for enrollment to four-year-old children who are not enrolled in a transitional kindergarten (TK) program. Regulation also reflects the applicability to CSPP programs of specified requirements for general child care and development programs, reflects CDE guidance regarding four-year-olds who are eligible for both CSPP and TK programs, and adds material on staffing ratios, parent/guardian notification of approval or denial of enrollment, and maintenance of a family data file.

BP/E 6163.4

Student Use of Technology

(BP revised; AR deleted; E added) Policy updated to clarify circumstances under which districts may lawfully search students' personally owned devices, delete outdated prohibition against use of district technology to access social networking sites, and include material formerly in AR re: appropriate student conduct when using the Internet or other electronic communications. Regulation deleted and replaced by new Exhibit presenting a sample Acceptable Use Agreement.

BB 9100

Organization

(BB revised) Bylaw updated to clarify the time periods during which the annual organizational meeting must be held pursuant to law and to expand items to be addressed during the meeting to include a review of resources on board governance and leadership roles and responsibilities.

SCHOOL PLANS/SITE COUNCILS

The Governing Board believes that comprehensive planning that is aligned with the district's local control and accountability plan (LCAP) is necessary at each school, in order to focus school improvement efforts on student academic achievement and facilitate the effective use of available resources. The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that school plans provide clear direction and identify cohesive strategies aligned with school and district goals.

- (cf. 0000 - Vision)
- (cf. 0200 - Goals for the School District)
- (cf. 0400 - Comprehensive Plans)
- (cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan)

Each district school shall establish a school site council in accordance with Education Code 52852 and the accompanying administrative regulation to develop, review, and approve school plans.

For any school that participates in specified state and/or federal categorical programs, the school site council or other schoolwide advisory committee shall consolidate the plans required for those categorical programs into a single plan for student achievement (SPSA). (Education Code 64001)

- (cf. 0520.2 - Title I Program Improvement Schools)
- (cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees)
- (cf. 1431 - Waivers)
- (cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement)
- (cf. 6171 - Title I Programs)
- (cf. 6174 - Education for English Language Learners)
- (cf. 6190 - Evaluation of the Instructional Program)

As appropriate, a school may incorporate any other school program into the SPSA. (Education Code 64001)

The Superintendent or designee shall review each school's SPSA to ensure that it meets the content requirements for all programs included, is based on an analysis of current practices and student academic performance, and reasonably links improvement strategies to identified needs of the school and its students. He/she shall also ensure that specific actions included in the district's LCAP are consistent with the strategies identified in each school's SPSA.

The Board shall, at a regularly scheduled Board meeting, review and approve each school's SPSA and any subsequent material revisions affecting the academic programs for students participating in the categorical programs addressed in the SPSA. The Board shall certify that, to the extent allowable under federal law, the SPSA is consistent with district local improvement plans required as a condition of receiving federal funding. (Education Code 64001)

SCHOOL PLANS/SITE COUNCILS

Whenever the Board does not approve a school's SPSA, it shall communicate its specific reasons for disapproval of the plan to the school site council or committee. The school site council or committee shall then revise and resubmit the SPSA to the Board for its approval. (Education Code 52855)

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that school administrators and school site council members receive training on the roles and responsibilities of the site council.

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

- 52-53 Designation of schools
 - 33133 Information guide for school site councils
 - 35147 Open meeting laws exceptions
 - 41540-41544 Targeted instructional improvement block grants
 - 52060-52077 Local control and accountability plan
 - 52176 Advisory committees
 - 52852 School site councils
 - 54000-54028 Educationally Disadvantaged Youth Programs
 - 54425 Advisory committees (compensatory education)
 - 56000-56867 Special education
 - 64000 Categorical programs included in consolidated application
 - 64001 Single school plan for student achievement, consolidated application programs
- CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5**
- 3930-3937 Compliance plans
- UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20**
- 6311 Accountability, adequate yearly progress
 - 6312-6319 Title I programs; plans
 - 6421-6472 Programs for neglected, delinquent, and at-risk children and youth
 - 6601-6651 Teacher and Principal Training and Recruitment program
 - 6801-7014 Limited English proficient and immigrant students
 - 7101-7165 Safe and Drug-Free Schools and Communities
 - 7341-7355c Rural Education Initiative

Management Resources:

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS

A Guide for Developing the Single Plan for Student Achievement: A Resource for the School Site Council, February 2014

WEST ED PUBLICATIONS

California Healthy Kids Survey

California School Climate Survey

WEB SITES

California Department of Education, Single Plan for Student Achievement:

SCHOOL PLANS/SITE COUNCILS

<http://www.cde.ca.gov/nclb/sr/le/singleplan.asp>

U.S. Department of Education: <http://www.ed.gov>

WestEd: <http://www.wested.org>

(11/06 8/13) 7/15

**Policy
Adopted**

**ARENA UNION ELEMENTARY/POINT ARENA JT. UHSD
February 10, 2016
Point Arena, California**

SCHOOL PLANS/SITE COUNCILS

School Site Councils

Each school shall have a school site council composed of the following: (Education Code 52852)

1. The principal
2. Teachers selected by the school's teachers
3. Other school personnel selected by the school's other personnel
4. Parent/guardian representatives, who may include parents/guardians of students attending the school and/or community members, selected by parents/guardians of students attending the school
5. If the school is a secondary school, students attending the school selected by other such students

Half of the school site council membership shall consist of school staff, the majority of whom shall be classroom teachers. For an elementary school site council, the remaining half shall be parent/guardian representatives. For a secondary school site council, the remaining half shall be equal numbers of parent/guardian representatives and students. (Education Code 52852)

A district employee may serve as a parent/guardian representative on the school site council of the school his/her child attends, provided the employee does not work at that school. (Education Code 52852)

The bylaws of each school site council shall include the method of selecting members and officers, terms of office, responsibilities of council members, time commitment, and a policy of nondiscrimination.

School site councils may function on behalf of other committees in accordance with law. (Education Code 52176, 54425; 5 CCR 3932)

School site councils shall operate in accordance with procedural meeting requirements established in Education Code 35147.

(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees)

Single Plan for Student Achievement

Any district school that shall participate in any state or federal categorical program specified in